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The purpess of this report iz to dovwment the bullding's details
a3 found during the architectural investigetion of the structure, to
svalvate this information and %0 recommend in drawings and specifics-
tions the physical restorallon and rehabilitation of the bullding as
it appesred during the Givil ver years.

The material in this report is organisad to show the development
of the proposed work, first starting with a compariscn of the Dogan
Houae with comparable strugtures in this asres, a description of the
architectural investigation, and a final smmmatien showlng its evelutien
of growth with recommendations for rehabilitstions. Certain festures of
the bullding will, of necassity, be vonjectural, uwhenever thess features

are veplaced and little or no information is known about the original
conditlons, the details will be based on histericsl precedent of local
building practics.

Archdtectural resesrch and investigation of the Dogan House was
started April 19, 1960. Part I of the Architectural Data Jeetion,
Hateric Structure Zeport, bseed vpon this investigation, was submitted
ant approved Mey 20, 1960. Parther srohitectural investigrtion continued
to determine what was the 1860 war-time appearence of the Dogan House,
This invelved & swmall amount of axploratory exeavations on the sagt and
west sides of the Lullding to determine Lf further foundations for
perches, rooms, otc., could be lovated. This work was carried out under
the supsrvision of the hesident Architect. The results of these latar



investigations nave been recorded and incerporated into the fellowing
raport.

The major presdse proposed in the resteoration of the Dogan House
i8 besed upon the assunption that any changes or alterations to the
original (Y.&. nanderiven lath) interior cemstruction of the house
using machine sawn lath coccurred in 1881.1882, This premise is further
mibstantleted by a traditionsl story that stetes that a eamnon shell
fired from the Confederste troops situsted on Battery Helghis, crashed
through a door apming on the west aide of the Dopgan House. If tradition
holds true, then the deor frame found atill intact in the west wall of
the frame addiiion end covered cver the machine sawn lath, must ba the
door in refersnce. Any changes to the epining would have had to cecur
afber 1862, and most likely in 1881-1d82,

Gonferences relating to the proposed restorstion of the Dogan
House were discussed in deteil on the site and in the Philadelphia
Office with Charlos B. Peterson, Supervising Architect, Histeric Jtructures,
Henry iAe Judd, Architect BODG, and the Park Superintendent, Franeis 7.
Wilshin, This raport is the finel sumsation of these discussions.

(rvills W, Carrell



SUMMARY OF PHIDICAL HISTORY

There is evidanos to believe that the original structure standing
a% Crovelon was once a smell 14t X 16' one room log cabin with a
cantrally located flreeplace bullt in the north wall. Ho definlie
infornation has been located to give the exact dates of construction
of the Dogan House at Groveton, Virginis, In the Historical Lata
Section report sulmitied by the Park Historian E. T. Crowson, thers
are references made ¢ thras perieds of bullding sctivities ocouring
in 18171619, 18L0-1845, and 1856-1860. Thewe are existing records
stating that 4n 1860 a small (freme) building was moved about 400 yaxds
southwaast (and attached to the leg esbin). These records substaniate
the fact the two bulldings that composs the [bgan House at Groveblen
wers ereched prior to 1860, The type and variety of cut nails used in
the original construction of the frame addition appesr to be nails made
dater than the 1817-181% period, when nails were made of metsl sheared
from opposits direetions and hand-wrought hesds wers still employed 4in
thelr manufecture. Thls would date the construction of the frame
addition betwesn 1840 and 1845. In comparing the type of deor and windew
brim used in the leg cabin and the frame additicn, thers is further
difference. The trim ysed in the construction of the log cabin was
lass refined than in the frame addition suggesting thet the log
eabin could have bsen eonstructed during the eariler period of 1819.
Paga 2, shows what is thought to be the probable changes cccuring in the
Bogan House Irom 1819 to 1950, when the 1881-1882 addition was removed,






Part III COMPARABLE STRUCTORSS

llustrations & through 11 show sevarsl exmuples of bulldings within
the Hanassas area that are comperable with the Dogan House. (ne of the
Bost interesting bulldings illustrated end still standing is the "Cein
House™ located about % mile south of Centreville, Virginia on Houte 28,
Jike the Dogan House, it wes consiructed with one part log snd the cther
part frame. OSes Illustration No. 4. Of particular interest is the
dpsation of the interior stalrwey found in the frame part of the house and
shown in Dlustyation Ne. 5. Its location and dimensions are slmost
identicel to the original stadrway removed in 1881 fram the frame sdditien
of the Dogan Hougse. It 12 intended to usa the desimn of this stairway
for purposes of securing autheniic deteils when restoring the 1860 stairway
&% found in the freme addition of the Dogan Houwse, The leth used on the
stadirvay and probably throughout the house waz found to be the same as
the Dogan Houss, handw-riven and split from chestmut+ pak.

lustration No. 6 shows the exterior of the febinson House taken
shertly after Second Manasses. It was A one roam, 14 story cabin constructed
of logs covered with weatherbosrding., Iike the Dogan House, the weather—
boarding was spsced very irregular. This is particularly noticesble en tha
entire gable end that shows in the photogreph. The {loor plans indicate an
interior arrengesent that is very similar to the log cabin at firoveton,
particulariy the location and type of stalrway showh., Cther fsatures
simllar to the log ¢abin part of the Dogan louse &rs the randen widih
floor boards, the location and type of stone chimney, the srbtericr batten
deor, snd the typiesl way of spplying weatherboarding painted with whitewash,



Dlustration Ho. 7 and 8 show the Lst and 2nd floor plans of the
Bolbinson House, |

Riustration Hoi § shows another exmuple of a typloal log eabin
covered with weatherbosyding. This cabin stands nesr Thoroughfare Gap
sbout & miles west of the Bogan House. In addition to the weatherbosrding,
the stone chismey with & projecting stone course forming the chismey cap
is very similar to the cne at the Dogsn Houss. The lecal practice of
whitewashing the extericr stone and wood structures is discernikle in
this photograph.

Dlustration fe. 10 shows a portion of "Flestwood® ca. 1822, located
sbout 10 wilss south of the ogen Nouse. The frame portion of "Fleetwood"
more than any other pre-Livil wer building left standing in the Manassss
ares cuiss closer to matching sonstiruction detszils as i‘mm in the freme
addition oi the lugan fHouse. Of particular intersst is the beaded wasther
bearding, the bsadsd sorner boarde, beaded and tapered verge boards, beaded
fasela boards, headed window and door cawings with a moulded backband, and
the use of varied sized window sash., The buliding is of particular velue

in showing how weatherbos g was cut and applied. This iz well illustrated

in the photograph, Here again i shown the epplicstion of whibewssh over
both masonry snd wood swrfaces,

Divstration Ho. 1) is the last of the exsaples zhown of bulldings
within the danassas ares constructed similarly to the Dogan House, This
@uall log cabin, often callsd lirs. Spinner's douse was located west of
Centroville on the Kerrenton Twrmpike. Although the house no longer stands,
valusble evicencs relsting to local building practices of 1860U'e can be



studled from the photograph. Of particular interest in its relationship

to the Dogan House is the prastice of whitewsshing exterior surfaces of

masonry and weod. Illuatration No. 2 shows an enlargement of the shizney

in the Dogen House. I asmumed that the stone chimhey above the roof

line was whitewsahed in 2 similar fashion to the chimney of the Spinner

House,

Ao Sbructurel Investigations of the log Cabin

First Floor:
1. Wall Openings and Pindshess

4. North wWalls Prior to 1860, when the frame bullding was added
to the log cabin, it is thought that the only ependng ovut into the
north wall was she fireplace. During architectural investigations
the present deor frame was removed frvm the north-west corner of Lhe
cabin., It was discovered that the stucco surface applied in ea,
1860 centinued under Lhe door frame and arcund the cornper of the
chimney. ¥hitewash as applied libkerally to tils surface ss w}.l
as the log lintel ovarhesd and the twe expossd ands of logs resiing
on the atone work above the firenlucs that were cut off during the
procass of cutting the opaning through. (n the opposite side of the
opening nalls wers driven throwgh & vertical 1* X 8¢ board into the
loose ends of the logs to hold the wall rigid. This hoard had no
warks left frem hinges to indicate that a door was upsd in this
location. From this informetion, it is assumed thet the only door
existing betwean the two rooms on the first floor in 1862 was



located in the south-west corner of the frams addition. The
remaining hinge marks indicats that the door opened against the
chimney in the hallway,

The =aall door opening (2%5" X 4'-108%) to the right of the
fireplace is5 thought to have been used as & psntry doer rether than
an entrenceway because of its restricted dimenslons. Ths door
casings mateh those used on the stairway in the opposite corner of
the voom which is thought to ba built in 1860,

b Fast Wall: 'the present sast wall eontaing an orlginal doer
opening that wes blocked off for a window f{rame aftapi}ab2,
Architectural invsstigeticns esposed a lodged Minnle ball bstwean
the old door jamb m& its frams. In tracing the angle of the bullst
it was found Lthat its path would have had to pass through the present
vindow frams. The windew frame has no scars to indicste that this
happenad. This eviderce confiyms assuwption thot the deor was in
use during the 3Sscond Battle of Mamassas, August 28-30, 1862, aund
not until 1881 was the doorwsy altered into s window, The knowledge
that the change from a door to & window oceurred in 1881 is useful
in dating the remaining door end window frames in the Dogen Fouse
thot have & similar type of construction. Two doors and three
additional windowe have identiecal detalls to the window described
above. Ii 18 propossd that the window be removed in the sast wall
and the door restored to its original opening,

@ th Well: There are no door or window openings lmtadinﬁha
south wall of the log cabin on the first fleor. The presmt stair-



way lecoted in the south-esst corper of the room doss not sppear
to be part of the ordginal {ca. 1819 or 1840) construction. It
very likely was bullt in 1860 when the roof was raised and additional
roca became available on the second floor. The stalrway was
enclosed with vertical boards. & board end betten deor at the foot
of the staire is still intact. It was raised to swing above the
first step, & sizilar detall intended to be used on the stair door
legading off the roos in the freme addifion. Both stairs were
enclosed and had small closel doprs under them. Tm doors probably
ware mede of boards ind battens with wooden latehes helding them
closed,

The interior surfaces of the leog walls were originslly finished
with a c¢lay chinking filled in between the spaces of the loga.
The aspaces were {irgt backed wilh stones, and wood filler hefore
the clay chinking was applied. Unlike most leg cabins in the
vieinity where the logs wares hewn both the interder arsé exterior
surfaces, the majority of the loge used in the logean Houss wars
laft round. This feature is most noticeable on the interlor
walls. In later years, & second cdzé.t of lime plaster was spplied
over the old clay chinicing all but covering the exposed loge. It
is thought that the sacend coat of plaster was applied in J82l.
beeause of its use over different patched areas using machine sawn

lath,



d, West Wall: The west wall has one window opeigs with its
original frame intact. It consisted of two four-light sash
with one sash sliding hordzentally. The interior snd m@ﬁer
window casings sre nlssing, however, Lhe window frim is thought
w be similar (0 thai used on Lile door Irsme in the east wall,

2. GCelling

The eeiling in the first {floor rowm of the log cabin

consists of five sexposed ceiling beams 45" x 5% spaced approximatsly
2'-6" on ¢enter eoverad with randem widths floos boards for ths
second floor., The exposed eeiling besms and flooring were finlshed
with a coat of whitewash,

3« Fleoor

Four pieeces of the original pine floor wers found in the
south-eest cormer of the log cebin on the first floers These
measured 87-9"-gz" and 53" in widths, 1" thick and with tongue
and groove.
Ba Structurel Investigations of the leg Gabin - Sseend Floop

1. wall Opendnge and Finishes
2. Morth @all: The north wall en the Znd flcor of the log cabin
was bullt above the floor 3'6" and extended the full lenmgth of the
room, In 1881, & five foot section was cut out fram the twe upper
logs to sllow acesss inte the abiic room of the frims addition, The
sane peracn also cul through a disgonual braece thut extended from the

top log of the west well to the top log of the lower north wall.



Tllustration Re. 23 shows this gondition with the noteh for the
diagonal brece vislble in the top log of the west wall just under
the plate. The original wall line of the log cabin can be
distvingulshed by the whitewaah murks left on the weatharboarding
of the frame addition. Tho steps shown in the sams photosraph are
1881, although the platform boyond over the hall ie thought to be

in ite original locsticon. IDlustration Mo, 22 shows 2 almilar

concdlition existing at the scuthewest corner of the room. The
condition of the north wall must have looked much like the south
wall in 1860 when the upper part of the walls in the log cabin were
redsed.

be Zzat bald: It is assumed that the logs in the upper part of the
sagt wall above the sscend Lioor wers added in 1850 in an effort to
meten the cornice line en Lhe sast side of Lhe house, 48 & result
tho wall was bullt about 3' sheve the 2nd floor leval. There are
ne opanings in ths east wall,

¢s gouth walls The south wall contains one window opening 2'e6% X

310 up 36 from the floor. In melntaining a 8% X 10% glass
size, the opening will sccomodats 2 sash with 9 lizhts. Assuaing
tist ventilation was fumilshed to the room, a window sash with
tiree Lights over & sash with six would work. A similer window
patiern was fourd on & Znd floor window of 2 asmall pre=-Civil war
house 8t daymariket, Virginia. Illustration Ho. 22 shows ths precent
condition of the south wall on the secend floor of the log oabin,

Ths studding in back of ths machine sawg loth were found to hweva
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whitewash indicating that the lath and plaster was added at a
later data, possibly 1881, The freming of the geble end in this
wall was found to be wued material indicating bhat whan the log
walle were raised in 1860, part of the msterial frem the original
structure was re-used,

de Hash + The west wall on the second floor gontalns no
openings. In 1860, the log wall wan bullt up 5'<7% shove the
nd floor to provide & pafter bsering for the maw reof. 2
higher wall wae necesvary on one side of the cabin to voupansate
for a two foot difference in widih betwesn the log cabin snd the
frans aadition. By extending the wall up 5'~7%, the desived effect
of watehing Lhe poof lines between the Liv bulldings could be
schiaved.

#wst of the logs added st this time were hewn both i the
interier snd exterier surfeces. The space between the logs wag
filled with round and eplit poles and covered with & clay chinlding.
the weil surface was whitewsshed.

Celling

The 1860 appesrancs of the c¢eiling on the Znd floor of the
log cabin is not definitely knowi. ine refier thought o be an
nenbar ¢f the original recl comstruction is all that ressins of
the previous roof afber the stabilimation of 195C. Jids rafter
shows the use of collar besms and wiltesmsh. The csiling was
probebly laft exXposed in 1260 and not until 1281 was the scuth



3.

gable wall and the ceiling surface plastoered. Illustratien Ne. 22
shows the general profile of the celling as it must have looked.
Floor

The 2nd floor §cnsists of full lengih randem width pine
boards, 6% to §Y widé with‘tangue and groove edges. A 5" beaded

baseboard was used around the rocm.

Ce STRUCTURAL INVESTIGATIONS OF THE FRAME ADDITION

First Floor:

L.

Wall Qpenings and Rinishes

. North Wail: The nqrth wall of tha-frama additlon underwent

a major change in 1881 when an enclesed stairway running along‘the
nerth wall was removed. Eﬁideﬁee ol these chﬁnges cin be seen

in Illustration Nes, 18, This phobograph shows the original hand-
split chestnut-cak lath to the left, still covered with the
original plaster. The disturbed aree to the right of the plaster
was later covered in 1881 with sawn lath, & pertion of which can
be seen in place cn the wall in the upper center and on a 4t X
10Y portien eof the ceiling., An original eak header, which wes
part of the originél stairway plaas, wﬁs left undisturﬁad during
the 1881 remeodeling and canm be seén in the extreme upper lefi.
corner of Tllustration No. 18, Thé srea under the stalrway was
not plastered as evidenced by the three original wall studs thai
were found whitewashed below the marks of the stair siringer. It
was & general practice in this area to enclose the stairway and 1o

utilisze the area under the atairs as a storage closet. A similar



condition exists in the "Gedn House", near Centreville, Virginia,
alse a part log and frame houss. Illustration Ho. 5 shows an
interior view of tie atairwey in the "Gain House," with conditions
very similar to that of the Dogan jouse., Hand priven oak lath
was found to be used in thds house.

The window in the north wall appears to date Irom 1881
alterations. Approximately four feet of an original stud was
eut off to allow for ihe inataliion of the window while a rough
clreular-sewn pine studs were placed in the wall to swpport the
window frame and Lo provide » nalling surface for the sawn lath,
the type of window freme and trim used in this window conforms
Lo those used in the twoercom 1881 additien removed in 1949,
rather than tot he originel frume snd trim found in the aazt wall,

It ie thougit thet both a chairrsil and bassvboard was used
duping 1860, A 34" space for the chairrail and 54" space for the
baseboard wa;fs found in sections wers the original plaster was still
intagt. Ho evidence was found to indicate tiat either the chair-
rall or baseboard was ever used on the first floor inm Lhe northe-
245t gorger where the stairway siood. This was even true after
the stairwny was removed. The absenca of Lhe chatrrail and basa-
board at this location semms to further substantiste the fact that
the stalrway was used in 1860, Dllustration No. 17 shows an
original plece of chairrail, on the left, set back into poaitien,
Space intendsd Yor a 53" wide bsasbosrd iz more sasily seen to the
dovier right of the photograph,

be gast Wail: Illustration Ho. 19 shows a continuation of the
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study of the north well. Sewn plne lath was found to be used in
this corner when repalrs wore made to the wall and ceiling aress
after Lhe stalrway was removed in 1831, In addition to the removal
of the stairs, the photozreph shows further changes made o the
whdbh of the sast doorway. The originsl opening corvesponds in
width to the door opening ussd in the west wall which still has
its original door frame intact. Illustration Ho. 13 phows both
door and window Zrames of tha 1860 period,

The gast wall contolns the only original window Sframe in the
bogan House thet s3d1l retains {vs originel trim., wWith the exception
of the interior window stovl and tihe exterior backboard, the ?.rim
is gumplete.  Hoth exterior and intericr trim was made to two
pleces, a 5/8" X 4" beaded casing with a moulded backband 11/16%

X AWl 8%, faasl) wiw shaped nalls approximately 17 long were found

in the amm;;i.ar casing and ars assumed to be the nails that held the
backband. 1t is assuked thet both interlor and exierior backbands

tad identlical profiles, and was used on both door and window frames.
The use of a 4" wide cesing fer the door trim can be verifisd on

the east door of the frame addition, Here & fow original pleces of
weatherbeerding remain that ware cut %o fit & door with a four inch
casing. Thesse fow pleces of original weatherboarding were fortwnataly
left on the bullding during ite meny sliereations.

Nlustration ¥o. L7 shows where the chalrrail continued along
the east wall and undar the window stool forming the apron for t-ha

window., The nails used t¢ fastan the chairrail to the studs were
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cut nails with an YL" shaped head. Thess nails were 3$ill found
in the studs up approximately 36 inches frem the floor level. &
sheteh on page 15, shows a conjectural view of this 1st {loor yoom
in the frame additlion as it might have sppearsd in 184G,

¢ Seuth #Aall: The south wall of the frame addition retained
many feabures thet were identified as belonging te the original
construction, (ut nails remaining in a showrt plece of ghairrail
were natehed to existing nall hele patterns in the stuwdding loeated
in the south-esst corner of the building. D[ilustration No. 17
shows the chairrail replaced im its originel position. This

same photograph shows the cutline where a mantel was cnee used in
addition to a 53" baseboard, An originsl door casing and its
backband was found intact on the door to the right of the photo.
Thls trim is identical to i he sasing and backband found used on
the window in the east wall. Tha original door used in the s outh
wall is missing but probably was a board and baiten door since the
actual width sllowed between casing and door stop is 7/8%. Thls
eorregpands in width tc the exlsiing board and batten doors fomd
used in Lhe Logan House,

The stud members used in the originsl frame of the north
acditlon are identified with the typical Roman Mumeral marking
systemrused late inte the ninsteenth century by construction
workers. The south wall framing hes thess identifying marks,

Apparently the bullding was planned with a fireplaca and doorway
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in this identicel location befors it was moved to Qroveton in
1860,

de Hest Wall: Illustration No. 13 shows & door and window fyams
thnt was left intact insids the west wall durdny the remodeling
of 1881, I is assusod thet this was the deorwey that the
Gonfedersts shell passed through in 1B62Z during the Second Battle
of Hanassas, Sears of the shell ecould still be seen in the
original fleor boamis until they were removed in 1950. It is
thought that the scar appearing in the top plate of the freme
additien, {west side) upper left of photogreph, represents
ancther direct hit from a sannon shall,

The erdginal studding nmembars and diagenal braces in the
wast wall are ddentifisd witi; Homan Mumersl merkings corrssponding
to sbndler marks in the sill below. The notchss out into easch
curner post and the corrasponding neil pstisrns found in sgeh
intermediate stud in the west wall iz thought to relate to the
ealling Joists used in the comstruction of the 1841 addition
bullt aeress the west side of the Dogan House, Hachine zawm lsth
wag used to covar the deor and window openings on the interior
indicating that the changse in ths west wall probably ocoured at
the same timw,

Ceiling
The celling of the orlzinel frams addition can bist be seen

in Oluwstration No. 17. This photograph shows the originel finish



17

of the eciling; hend-riven chestmit-osk lath, plaster and
whitewssh. Where the ceiling and wall sreas joined, these
cornsre ware {inished square without the use of molding,
3. Floor
In sn interview with Fr. Reymond Cross, carpenter, who
complated the 1949 stabilizatlion of the logen Houss for the
Prince Willism County Chamber of Conmesrce, stated that the
eriginel floors were made of random width (6% to 1U%) T & G,
yellow pine bosrds. & amall piece of flooring was found under
the south deor frame end messured one ineh in thicknens,
Be Structural Investigaticons of the Frame Addition
Becond Floor:
l. Wall Openings and Finishes
(ne sdnor change in fenestration wes made to
tie north wall of the second floor atiiec room after 1860, The

original window, freme and trim wis rasoved and replaced during
tie alteration of J88L. {ut nails used $o hold a previcus window
frone wars shill eubedded in the original sfuds. In these zame
studding wers found out nails that held the weatherbospding spplied
from a pravious period. It wie possible to use these embsdded
naile to detwmine the sise of the original windew, & four light
sash 8" X 10", 2 sections with s 4" window casing. The present
window frams and itrim is idmmtical to that used in the rear 18481
additdon and similar to other window and deor frames altered in the
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freme addition snd log cabin the same year.

It 1le assumed that the plaster finish on the interdor walls
of the lst floor stalrway continued up into the second fleor with
& whitewash finish. This would be consistent with the interior
finish of the “Gein House® which has this featura,

b. South Wall: The only visible change &n the south wall of

the frame addition ovscuring after 1860 waa the removal of &

4 light window. In its place & doorwsy was cut through the

aputh wall to gein access into the 2nd floor of the log structurs.
Photo Illustretion No. 24, shows the ghost outline of the window
8ill and casing on the original stud to the left. The atud to
the right ls unwhitewashed and represents a later additionm,
Spaeing for the originel stud is indiceted by the tencon notch
sasn ab floor level and by the unwhitewashed mard laft on the
weatherboarding by the stud above.

The origlnsl besded weatherboarding is still intaet on
the south wall. These beardes ware left exposed on the zecond
floer and simply finished with whitewash.

Cedling

The ceiling in the stiic room of the freme addition was
left unplsstered, The exposed surfaces of the rafters, spagad
1" X 3% roof bosrds and shingles were whitewsshed. The original
roo{ boards and refters are still intaot over the frame addition.
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3. Fleor
Host of the origingl floor boards are otill in place in the

Znd floor although many deterlorated. They are square edged

bourds, random widths (7% to 10%) of ysllow pine.

The originel covering for the roof of tha Dogen Fousm was woden
yellow pine shingles, spproximstely 4% wide by 187 long. They ware
handeriven and ssoothed with & drawing lorife. Several of thess shingles
vore found in the walls of the freme additlon used a3 bullding shims
during $ts conatruction. 4 similsr type of shingle was Zownd on the
reof ¢f the apring house, now fallen in, ab "Peaoh Urove® the old
criginal Dopan fouse some 500 yards 1o the northe-sast. The shingles
in both instanoes heave the square butts. The actusl number of shingles
courses can b acouwrabely counbed frem the ridge to the seves in
Hiustration No. <. It appears that the shingles were lald spproximately
6" to the waather.

. Chimney:

The present chimnay seous to bs the origiosl one bullt when the log
cabin stood alone. It waw censtructed in the canter of the north wall
of the log cabin and fros all sutawnsl appearances it was intended to be
laft exposed to the westher, I wne built with drip stonea on each side
of the chimney up sbout 8* whare ths irmward sloping of ths flue begins.,
(n the north side thers i3 & stepped faoe spproximutely 4" wide starting




sbout 5' above the chimney base. The post 1865 Dogen House
standing nearby has this same festure. IDllustretion Ne. 17
shows the ledge reforred to.

Ilustraiion Ko. 2 shows the ordginsl chimnay asrea above
the roof as it appesared in 1907. The chimney had a string
stone course with a projection of approximately 23 located sbout
6" below the top of the flus. Thewe i3 no indiesation that metel
flashing was used sbove the roofline. iny flashing sr caulking
used would have to be concealed belew the shingles,

it appears from the photograph that the exterier surfaes of
the chiuney dbove the roof was covered with whitewash. Mra, dpimnerts
house nesr Centreville, Ilustration No. 11, is a geod example
showing the use of whitewash on chimney aress during the 1865
pericd,

The type of pointing used in the originel stone work was &
¥ or “Ridge® type of Joint. Illustration No, 17 shows some of the
eriginal mortar joints on tie chimney ares imuediately back of the
wall in the freme addition. This area has baen protected singe the
bullding was added and the mortar pointing is wall prasarved,
2. TFireplaces:

Tllustration No. 17 shows the plaster surface ramaining on
the face of the chimney that outlines the original mantel piscs now
nigsing around the fireplace in the frame addition. The width of
the mantel can be detemined by the measurements betwesn the original
plece of chalrrail on the left and the door casing on the right,



The haight of the msntel can be determined by the outline left
by the stucdo surface. Since the originsl mantel is misaing,
the design for the replacement will be conjectural,

The hearth in the frame addition apparently was constructed
of brick. Although most of the hearth is wmissing a few bricks
remain intact en the interior of the fireplace., The dimemsions
of the hearth were ﬁsﬁm&n&a by measuring the stons base uncovered
during excavation.

In the log cabin, there is no evidence remaining of the hearth,
The presant hearth is constructed of hriak and stons rubble gcovared
with a thin layer of concrete. In the first floor plan of the
Bobinson Houss, Illustration Ne. 7, there is a stone hearth shown.
It is possible that the original hearth of the log cabin in the
Hogan Rouse was also bullt of stome. ‘The construction of a stone
hearth would be more in character with the log cabin.

There is no evidencs laft to suggest that & mentel was used in
the log cabin. A stucco surface was found to run continuous arcund
the corner of the chimney on the weet side and across the face of the
ﬂmphee. Ro means to fasten & mantel to the stonework could be
found in this room. It i3 assumed that there was no mantel in the
log cabin snd that the exposed surfages of the chimney to the east,
west, and south sides were covered with stueco, and finished with
& ceat of whitewash,

3. Foundatien
It was found that the original foundation extended 3" to &
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below grade without a footing, Some of the original stome wall
siill remains intaot on the north and east sides of the frame
addition elthough about half of the east wall was rebullt with
& grenite stone in 1949. The entirs stone well under the log
cabin has bean pushed owbwerd by the welght of the building.
This wall was built with very 1ittls mertar, In the restoration
of the logan House 4% is reccmmended that the entire foundabion
be replsced and rebullt with red sandstone and pointed with the
"ridge” typs of mortar joint,
Hentherbosrding

#uch of the original besded westherboarding resadins intest
on the south wall of the freme sddition. Soversl additionsl
pleces ware left in plade on the ssst wall Just below the cornice.
There is no consistent widbh of these boands ner in spaoing thelr
exposure 1o the weather. idths of boards ranged from 63" 4o 1%
and spacings very frem A-3/4% to 8-1/8% In comparing this detail
with other bulldings photegraphed during the Civil War in the Mensssas
arvoey the asame inconsistency of spacing the weatherboarding
The best example is the Hobinsen fouse shown in llustration No. 6.
In pleces where the originsl weatherboards g reguires replacesent and
the spacing can be measursd aumm, it iz intended to repleca
these bosrds with thedr original exposure.

It is thought that the log portion of the Dogan House
was covered with weatherboariing in 1860 when the freme portien
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was added, A few ordiginal mailing strips were found in place
on the gouth wall of the log esbin., It appears that when the
roof line was ralsed, the top log on the south wall wes plased
with encugh overhang to align ths vertieal nailing strips with
the frame construction in the gable end., This would allow the
weatherboarding to extend past the log wall and onte the frame
wall in the gable end withouwt any irregularity. Additiensl notches
were eut inte oversized logs to allow the verticle nailings
girips to achleve & deogres of stralghtness. In sddition to the
notchen, enouzh cut nails that were used to hold the nail strips
to the logs exist to enable a fair amount of accuracy in measuring
their spacing.

The type of nalls found used in the weatherboarding were i0d

common cut nails,
Cornice and Gabla Trim

Part of the original cornice is still intset on the east
side ¢f the frame sddition. I consisted of » crown coulding
(now missing), beaded faseis board, soff{it board, and bed mowlding.
In 1860 when the frame addition was attached te the log structure,
the comice was axtended across the length of the eabin on ihe
sast side, Illustration Ne. 1 and MNe, 2 show photographs of the
cornlee as it sppeared in 1907, Although a major remodeling
securred in 1881, it is thought that the architsctural featursa

of the 1860 cornice and gable trim were altsred very little. Since



much of the cornice has been removed during the many slterations
and stabllizetions snd all of the cernice returns at the gable

encla have haen removed bub encugh evidence remains to recenstruct
a reasonably ascourate desigs, It ia known that the fascis board
extended beyond the weatherbosrding st the gable enda and had &
mitered corner indieating that the same board was returned around
the cornar probably back as fur sa the corner bosrd., It is
pessible thst the orvwn meulding also follpwed this similar pattern,
mitering arcund the corner and projedting as far as the end of

the fascia board, Above the erown moulding it is thought that a
drip cap was used to protect the moulding and to provide & terminsa-
tdon point for the verge board snd trim,

The cornice at the resr or west aide of the log cabin doss
noet appesr to have the same type of sornice &9 the rest of Lhe
house. An originel rafter found o the west side of the cabin
has an overhand of only four inches. If ihis were the case, the
cornice was probably finlshed with a narrow seffit board and meulding,
Hoth the sofiit and bed moulding would butt against the extension
of the verge board at the gable end.

4n original plece of beaded verge board 3' long was found
nalled on the south gable end of the frams addition. It measured
b=3/b* in width and hes & slight taper, The proposed varge board
would teper 1* from four to five inehes in width and have a 1-1/16"
moulded trim nadled to the upper edge.
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Steps and Forches

ALL of the steps and porghes shown in the preliminery
restoration drewings are conjectural. Explovatory excavations
fallad to wneover any definite informstion relsting to the
location of purch footings, slithough a sﬁan»a walk wes Jovated on
the east side of the bullding (See Illuctration No. 15). Ihake
sbie to detemine Lhe width of the platform by the termination of
the walk, Obher details of ths esst platfore are somewhat onject-
wral. These are based on the womewhat obssure featurss found in.
Dlustration No. 3. This photograph shows signs of a platform
with bandrail in front of the esst dovrwsy. The handrsil design
was pattarned after the Hobinson louse and Allustrates & typieal
ralidng cdetail found in this sres. dse Illustration So. & showing
the Gobinsen House,
Painting

All existing evideuge at the site in addition to other
sources of waterisl stuiled, seans to sugzest that all axterior
woodwork of the logan House was whitewashed. Wth the exceptien
of Lhe stene foundation, the masonry work hes also been whitewashed.
Thers was no indication found that whitewash was used on the stome
foundatlon wells although this was a general practice followed in
L8 area during the 186U'H, whitewssh wks applied to all interier
walls and cellings surfsces with the exzeptiog of the door ang
window trim, doors, chairrail and baseboard, In the frame addition
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these members were found to have the original coat of light
blue-gray paint. In the log cabdn, the doors, baseboard,
window and door trim and the enclosed steirway were painted a
dark brown (chocolate). The rest of the cabin, log wells and
celliing surfaces were whitewsshed,
K. Hardvare
Eempants of hardware uncoversd during exploratory excavations
wers found to consist of three keys (thess will fit certain rimlocks),
parts of rimlocks, weden latches, round meial eye hooks, miscsllaneous
hardware censisting of pintles and iren staples, It i3 definitely
known frem existing holee found in the door frame, that the sast
door tot he log cabin was hung with pintel supported strap hinges. The
type of lock used on this door is not imown, however, rim locks
were found used on the interior deors. Elther wooden latches or
the rimlock ecould have been in use during the 1860's. It i3 assumed
that the doors of the frame addition all used rimlocks, Zxlsting
hinges of one piece sast-iren, measuring 2-3/8° X 34%, werv foupd
used on the doors of the log cabin.
Ko evidence was found on the one original window frames to
indicate that shutters were used previously to 1881,
Part ¥V RECOMMENDATIONS
A. Architectural Work
It is recommended thai the Dogan House be restored back toc its
Givil War time appesrance as proposed in this report and as shown in the
one sheet of Preliminary Drawings No. NHS-MNBP 3050 (see appendix)



The feliewing reccmmendstions ave made to supplemeni more accurately the

informatien proposed in Fert I of the Arebitectural Data, Mistorie

Structures Report.

L.

s

Vasenry Work: It 1s recomiended that the existing stone foundation
wall be removed and rebudlt over & conorebe feoting., Tila dratn shell
be instelled at the feotdng level and dralned eastward to the rosdway.
Tha type of morter and teoling of the mortar Jolnts ehall conform to
to@ eriginal examples es found in the originel masonry work of the
chismey, Ths foundatlon walls shall be parged talow grade and one
soat of colorless watsrproofing material applied to the expesed
upgorry work above grade. The ghimney will require some rebullding
to maich photogrephs of the originnl stack above the roof. Seme
repelnting will be necessary befors the chizmney is whltewnshed. 411
flashing shall be conesaled below the shingles. |

Rebudld two interior hesrths; one stone, one brick,
sorks The follewing exterior work is recomwendad.
8. Frase: Stralghten, level existing building; replace all rotten
mebers in log and frame strasture.
b, Vies

herboarding: Remove end yapiscs all westherboarding noet
original to 1860 peried, Replace cornerboards,

¢. Doors and Windows: Rebuild new deor and window frames, rsplace
door and windew sash, bulld new bosrd sud batten deors where

specified, Jacure preper hardwsre for dooprs and "eld® glass for
aash.,

de oof: Aemove and raplace present roof with weoden shingles,



3.

8. Gornice: Rewove axisiing cornice and gebls verge boards and
raplace with new grown and bed soulding, bascls, soffit snd werge
boards Bs shown in proposed pestoration drawings,

£. Steps and Forghes: Zuild new steps and platfom as shown on
Preliminary Drawing He. BHS-BKEP 3050, Zuploratory axcavations
ﬁih&' to uneovay definite evidence relsting to additional roous
or porchas Lo the ﬁu;ﬁaa House., Steps énd platform shown in
drewing sre based on Information described serlier in report.

ge Palntdzg: 14 is recaasended that the exterior weatlisrbearding,
door and window trim shall be glven & prime cost of white lead
paint prier to whitewashing, Interier weodweric shall alsc be
primed with white lead paint and given & vest of light blue

paint to matoh ordginal celor in frawme sdditlen and 2 ceat of
dark brown Yo mateh sriglrel color spplled to woodwork in ths
log cabin. ALl ether plaster and log surfaces shall reesive &
sipwsu of two vosts of willewgah,

Interior Work: The following work is reccumended to bz conpleted
on Liw interier.

4. Sloors: Install new floor Jelst and [looring of first floor
In both reoms, repsir Jleor boards on sesond floor. Strenglhen
colling Jolets on dedl floor of freme addition.

e dalls: Rewove existlng wooden lath and plaster from wells and
esiling in frame addition. Apply new lath and plasisr to lst floer
walls and celling of frame addition, Install new interior windew



and door tLrim, bhuild new board and batten doers where needed,
install new chalrrall, baseboard, and bulld new mantel. Chink
log wells in log cabin.
¢y Jtairwmys: Rebulld stairwey in lng;_' gabin and in freme addition,
d. ZJecond Floor: Yo work is propesed for the sascond fleur other
than what ie negessery to stubilize the structure.
B Outhuildings
It 42 recommended tﬁz&t afditional land be uceuired Lo the west snd
north of the Dogan House to allow tlie re-building of the lug iiichen,
log meal~house, restorstion of ldstoric rail fances and to provide adeguate
pavicing fecllitles for visitatlon. The additdon of thase historic features
mentionsd would present a fairly relishle plcture reprasanting pert of the
{roveton orossroad's seene durdiny the early part of the 18601,
Part VI UTILITIZS
It is reecommended that provislons be nads for conveniencs outlets,
110 and 220 volte, in each room t¢ opasrsts elactric space heatars durdng
the winter menths to pravent mildew and excessive molsture from demaging
the intsrior surfaces of woodwork, plastar, and scms original places of
farniture thet 1s anticipated te be returned to the Dozan licuss upon its
eampletion.

It is rocoumended thet the present power supply that crossss Lmsediately
in frent of the Vogan Houss be ploced underpround. This would masn
elimination of the existing power pole that stands 12 faet awsy from
the south~sast commer of the house. An estimate made by Princs William
Blectrdie Co-op based on placing 1500Y of cable undarground totaled &11,062.25.
Gines the Park anticipates ssquiring land to the enst of the bogan House,
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305 of the copt, An estimie based on 1,029 feet of underground
sahle would total approximmbely §7,800. In addition to the

estimte has bewn given by the Pledwout Tedeplcne (oopany for

thio job but part of the oot would be sbeorbed by using the

s trench ga the power supply, A rough estimate Do undavground
phone servise or re<outing the telophone lines ot the

Dogan House is placed % §5,500,
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This view shows the basis for sonstructioncef platforn

eaet side of housa. &msW-WIMMWMW‘WW
road, It iz ssmosed that the poreh was weconstructed (3881) in &
sinilsr sanna o that of 1860, Hote chimney W o have o
stusco or whiteunsh.

FPhoto somroe; e tei MY,
W + B, Do
Copy Heg, im ECBC No. 812















Bouse, Stalrwey io aluost an idesiicel meich for the originel <

Free sddition of the Dogen House in 3881,







sdequate pobeciiom ivon the weatbey, wuch as under the powok,







Flowt Plogy @‘} an of Hebinson S,







esn. logs wers chinked with rosks, brick and wooden
poles, and coveresd with & lime morbar,







exterior surdace over veertioal meiling strips. This cabin stands
about 1 1/2 miles west of Heymarked, Virginis, on Boute £55. Sowe

sh cap be seen on weetharboerding as well so chisaey,
Bl Run Mourdtadne sve in baokgrownd.

Fhoto: (. W, Osppoll, May 1960
Neg. Be., 233 EODC






e of o pre-Civil don frame

iny of the details ave

pepign of the iheee panel dockr fue the Dogan

from Bristew, Virginias, os Roube Gii.

Prodo:  O. ¥ Caorodd, Hay 1960
New, No. 932 EEC









MRS, SPINRER'S HOURE

Avetiaer log sabin shending within ihe Bonsssy apen wag
Mra, Sploneris House. used as & hoogolel fur tbe Wion froops dmeing
the Batile of Mmeseas., I shood oo the teerenion Dwapike
{¥.5, Highway 29-201} about & miles east of the Dogan House.
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This view ghows ¢ window ond dooy Piene lefd intect within
ge on enst wall heve ldentiesl spocirg. AX% studs snd ooomor

Bhoter  Oreille ¥. Gorrall, May 1560
Heg. No. BODO 931






Explovetony exsevetions on the west side of

Hp evidenes of fomdsiioa earlisr
then 1281-1582 one shown in this view weg found during
seplovatory work. Hock used for this foumndetion wes
w used for the 1860

Paotor  Oryille ¥. Carroll, May 1960
Y¥eg. Ne. EODG 930









during exvavation,

Payto: €. W. Coxwoll, May 1960
Heg, No. 929 BEC






EAST EXCAVATION

This sall aven east of an origleal door opendng wus
meoverad In an attaupt to losale foolinge {or steps, porches
pletforms,. A bagyooet wes uncovered Just io right of picture in

Fhoto: O, ¥, Carvoll, My 1960
Reg, No. 928 REOLO






SOUTH WALL, FHAME ADDITION
View of frems additlon to the south showlng wlginel plaster walls

g ueed o finish interior swwiaces., 4An origimel plece
of shaiy rall set bask into place can be seen 40 lefi, Below is space for 2
baseboard,

Fhoto: Jsek 2, Boucher, April, 1960
Mag. Bo. 543 BODC






It has been assumed that the use of owwn ping lath
oeeurred durding the alterations of 1881-1882 and the use of
Bard eplit chestrut-gak lath for the crdginal 1840 struciure.
Ihis view showa the use of the susn pine lath pailed over
aroes where & stadrway woe rewoved in 1881.1882, ihdtewashed
stude were enclosed Ly stsivway., The window e also an 1881
addivion, Note eriginel siud uwl off to accommodate window
froce,

mmz Jaﬁ\k Eu m; M 1%
Nog. No. 947 EOPC






Other 18811282 aliwrations indicated by the use
of sayn pine lath :I.athﬁcﬂw;ge in width of the east door.
{rigioel opaning matehes aise of old door frame found in
west yuil, ses Illustration No. 13, When the chimpey weg
removed this aren was re-lathed and plasteved, One moteh

for stalregy stud can de sesn in selling joist in uppay
vight of photogreph, OCowpure miairsay design with
Diustration No, 5,

Fhoto: Jack E. Bousher, Apeil 1960
Nag, Ho. 246 EODC






An original door franme enslosed by the 1881.1482
aiteration, Sagn lath wog used to eover over opaning

%t‘*’@m ki a

gnd doeoy fonna,

Faoto:  Jask R, Boucher. &nrll 1940
Heg. No. 945 EODC






RALION 8O, 23
SECOND FLOOR, PRAME ADDITION
Iooking porth, second Dloor of Drase addition., WAL wag
govered with sawn lath and ploster dndloating thel the chauges wsere
made in 18811882, Remainder of walls aund celiling were whitemashed.

Floor boards show where epalirs were mude whan the stalrwny van
Fomoved.

Faoto: Jack E. Bousher, Aprii 1963
Heg, ¥o. 944 EODC






ZECD FLOOR, LOG CABIN

View of the south wall, second flooe of the log cabin, log wall ic
right was reised to present helsht io 1860 whes frame bilding was sdded to the
nopth slde of the log cabln., Motdeo the dimgorsl twace in the right cormee

intended to stabliive the loge above the sdjoinipng wall, vhen the widge of
e roof was reised, it wap mecesssry to Bulld wp one of the wall heights 1o

nsate for the log cebin being varrorey in widih that the frame addition,

G was Dound to be ome adted In 1881.1882. Present roof giruciure was
congtyrunted in 1950 by the jasshington Home Iupeovement Conpany.

Fiwoto: Jack E. Bouchey, April 196D
Neg. MNo. %42 EODC















the souwth wall, seoond floar of the frame addition, A four
ldght window was removed snd & docrway oub thyeugh for

aovese imto the log sebin, Ine of the ariginal window

#4311 sud trim can be sewn on the stud to the left. To the
sigat, the outline af he stud can bs seen on the veatharboarding
above end from the origlml murbice and tencn joink &t

Fiotos Jack E. Dowsher, Jume 7, 1960
Heg. Yo, 822 EODC










